
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE22 

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave., 
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan 
Hilton. Also present were Auditor, Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor, Treasure Gilbert and Eric 
Beaver, the Attorney that represents the Commissioners. Mr. Bontreger said they were excited to 
be back in their meeting room that was renovated, in which they removed the pole in the middle 
of the room. He thanked Ms. Louck for overseeing this project. Those present stood and recited 
the Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment of silence to honor Mr. 
Bob Schenk who recently passed away following the Pledge. 

MINUTES: Mr. Standish said that he noticed a minor correction in the minutes from March 
3,2025. He said they were talking about a dangerous intersection on 900 N but, the minutes stated 
400 N. Mr. Bontreger said they can make that adjustment and its possible that they misspoke. Mr. 
Hilton made a motion to approve the minutes from March 3,2025, with the correction to change 
"400 N" to "900 N", Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

CLAIMS: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the claims, as presented, Mr. Hilton seconded 
and the motion carried. 

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks dated 
March 14,2025 and March 28,2025, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

CORONER ANDY BOERSMA IX-RAY MACHINE I FORENSIC CENTER: Coroner Boersma 
said they have talked about an x-ray machine but, he thinks they're going to delay that and as they 
work towards the new Forensic Center they can incorporate it all into one. He said the building 
committee agreed to move forward with a feasibility on the N Annex building. Mr. Bontreger said 
it would be a feasibility of evaluating the building they have and then, add on. He also asked what 
the approximate price would be for an x-ray machine. Coroner Boersma said that the one the 
Sheriff has was about $180,000.00 but, they can get a refurbished one with a warranty for about 
$57,000.00, which includes delivery and training. He said they also have a Deputy Coroner that's 
already a radiology person. Mr. Bontreger asked how many times he thought they would need to 
use an x-ray machine per year. Coroner Boersma said it would depend on the case but, they had a 
few homicides that would've been nice to have an x-ray to determine cause of death. Mr. Bontreger 
asked Mr. Standish if they are considering the space for an x-ray machine in the building. Mr. 
Standish said yes and that there would be space for one. Mr. Standish asked Coroner Boersma if 
this could help eliminate the need for an autopsy in some cases; Coroner Boersma said it very well 
could. Mr. Bontreger asked how much autopsies are right now. Coroner Boersma said they are 
$3,300.00 per autopsy and they've had to do that several times already this year. The 
Commissioners thanked Coroner Boersma for the update. 

KAITLYN BOOMSMA / COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS STATE GRANT: Ms. Boomsma said 
she needs a letter of support to submit her grant proposal. She said they're proposing their next 
budget will be $835,262.00. She said this covers all of their Correctional Officers with a 10% raise, 
as well as an additional Surveillance Officer. She said their Advisory Board did support the request 
to the DOC. Mr. Bontreger asked how much they had left in their grant last year. Ms. Boomsma 
said they had about $800.00 left over but, it rolls over bi-yearly so, this will roll over into 2026. 
Mr. Hilton made a motion to support Ms. Boomsma's letter to the DOC for Community 
Corrections' grant, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. Ms. Boomsma also requested 
to replace a full-time employee. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve, Mr. Hilton seconded and 
the motion carried. Mr. Bontreger reminded Ms. Boomsma to mow the EMS building when they 
start mowing, he said their guys are doing a great job. 

DOCROUTER I LAREDO CONTRACT FOR RECORDER'S OFFICE: Attorney Beaver said 
DocRouter is a separate product from Laredo and is an add-on to one of the three companies the 
county uses for electronic recording. He said DocRouter would be a cloud-based program that 
would route, through access permissions and notifications, the process of recording a document 
between the county departments internally. He said this would be a useful tool, internally, for the 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE23 

DOCROUTER I LAREDO CONTRACT FOR RECORDER'S OFFICE CONTINUED: county to 
have but, his problem is that there's no cloud storage agreement and this information would be on 
DocRouter' s servers. He said these are county documents that are in the process of becoming 
public records and there's no safeguards. He said the company can use any of these documents as 
they please, even though they're coming from the county. He said they would charge a fee to allow 
the other electronic recording providers to use their service but, it would be at no cost to the county. 
He said there's an extra benefit to this company under the agreement, which is that they would 
have all the recorded documents of the county that were electronically recorded and they could 
sell those or data scrape them. He said a problem the Recorder's Office has been having for years 
is residents getting letters in the mail stating that they may be the subject of fraud and they can pay 
them to get their deed for them, which people can get for free in the Recorder's Office. He said his 
recommendation is that he get in touch with DocRouter and Fidlar to change the contract to suit 
Jasper County's needs, as opposed to this company's needs. Mr. Bontreger said they will take this 
under advisement and asked Attorney Beaver if he was considering offering a counter proposal. 
Attorney Beaver said that Recorder Grow wanted to get in touch with Mr. Sullivan from Fidlar, 
who's been with the county for about twenty years, and see what he thinks. 

Attorney Beaver said Recorder Grow also had a Laredo contract. He said this was a Schedule D 
to the master agreement with Fidlar. He said they did a lot of work years ago with the Schedule D 
to put in the safeguards he found were necessary when they adopted the Laredo program. He said 
last year there were some changes that Fidlar wanted to make so, they amended the Schedule D 
and now the only change is to accommodate the change of moving from the desktop application 
to the cloud application-based storage. He said this also included an increase in the fees, which are 
paid by the users. He said some of those fees go to the county and some goes to Fidlar. He said the 
Commissioners approved the subscription agreement change back in January so, he recommends 
that the Schedule D be approved. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the Schedule D Laredo 
contract, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. 

PUBLIC HEARING/ SPEED LIMIT REDUCTION ON WOOD RD TO 45 MPH: There was a 
public hearing to reduce the speed limit on Wood Road (CR 400 S) between Airport Road, which 
is CR 700 W, and the city limit of Rensselaer at Matheson Ave to 45 miles per hour. Attorney 
Beaver said a resident brought this up during the March Commissioners' meeting. He said 
presently, the speed limit is unposted and the request is to reduce it 45 miles per hour. There were 
no public comments on this matter. The Commissioners said that the reason for this request was 
because they are new residents and have a handicapped child and the house is relatively close to 
the road. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the speed reduction, Mr. Standish seconded and 
the motion carried. Ordinance No. 04-07-2025A 

I-65 IMPROVEMENTS BID ACCEPTANCE/ MAYOR JEFF PHILLIPS & BRYCE BLACK: 
Rensselaer Mayor Phillips and City Engineer, Mr. Bryce Black were present to discuss bids for 
the extension of water and sewer to the west side ofI-65. Mayor Phillips said they opened the bids 
and he forwarded those to the Commissioners, as well as the recommendations from 
Commonwealth Engineering. He said they were there to see if the County is ready to take the next 
step and answer any questions. Mr. Bontreger asked if he was correct in saying that they are 
pleased to go with Gatlin Plumbing & Heating and if they've worked with them before. Mr. Black 
said that Gatlin did the storm water on College Ave in front of the water plant in 2023. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to approve the bid of $3,750,000.00 from Gatlin Plumbing & Heating for the 
westward expansion of utilities, in partnership with the City of Rensselaer, Mr. Hilton seconded 
and the motion carried. Mr. Bontreger asked what was next. Mr. Black said the easement docs will 
go before the Council for approval then, they will give notice to proceed. He said he thought 
construction was still slated for mid to late summer. Mayor Phillips asked Auditor Boersma if on 
the billing side they can continue to do what they've been doing; Auditor Boersma said yes. Mr. 
Bontreger said to keep sending them the invoices and they have the money set aside for it. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE24 

I-65 IMPROVEMENTS BID ACCEPTANCE/ MAYOR JEFF PHILLIPS & BRYCE BLACK 
CONTINUED: Mayor Phillips said he also asked Mr. Bontreger to consider some increase to the 
recycling side of things since they haven't addressed it since their initial inception of the program. 
He said Mr. Black came up with an idea that might save them both a little bit of dollars and maybe 
work with Mr. Cain, with their permission, to see if they can't save some money for the County 
and City. The Commissioners said it seemed reasonable. Mayor Phillips said it's a very 
inexpensive way of fixing a problem they're having. 

Mayor Phillips said he saw that the Jasper County Trails Club was present and he wanted to update 
the Commissioners on the last information he got from INDOT on the path from Brookside to the 
fairgrounds. He said they wanted to see if they were open to accepting some of the soft costs that 
are associated with the project. He said this might get the project to move a little quicker than 
waiting on the INDOT grant. Mr. Bontreger asked if he had an estimate on what the costs would 
be for them. Mayor Phillips said he thought it was around $400,000.00. He said they will be going 
through a lot of right of ways but, they thought it'd be better to have it on the north side to give 
them an actual ditch that would be in-between to improve safety along the biking/walking path. 
Mr. Bontreger asked if they would be going half and half with the total cost. Mayor Phillips said 
he would love to. Mr. Bontreger asked what the timeline would be. Mayor Phillips said that's up 
to INDOT. He said they aren't clear right now on some of their Federal and State grant funding 
and when it's going to be available but, it was an 80/20 90/10 match. Mr. Bontreger added that the 
primary users of the path would be from Community Corrections so, that is why they would take 
some of the responsibility. 

Mr. Bontreger asked if there was an update on the water line hookup at the courthouse and an 
update on the Highway garage. Mr. Black said he had the Highway garage figures and the 
courthouse will be the next step with Commonwealth. He said they just got their approval letter 
from SRF so, they will be moving forward with bids and getting that project rolling. He said for 
the Highway garage they got a materials list put together and pricing to do the 1 ½ inch lateral to 
the grinder station, which was $5,238.00. He said to put in a 2-inch service for water to service the 
whole building, over time, would be $7,381.00. He said they would be able to do all of this in­
house and they don't believe they will have to disturb any of the concrete or asphalt. Mr. Bontreger 
asked if this would be a flexible timeline. Mr. Standish said they already got concrete down so, 
this can happen at any time they can coordinate with Mr. Ziese to get the pump and pit put in then, 
the City can come in to do the water. 

ERIC GEORGE I ARCEM I COUNTY PHONE SYSTEM REPLACEMENT: Mr. George, with 
Arcem, the county's IT company, was present to talk to about the county's phone system 
replacement. Mr. George said that Arcem started providing support to the county back in 2018 and 
one of their initial projects they wanted to do was replace the phone system. He said the county 
currently uses a Mi tel phone system that runs on a Windows server and it's been on life-support 
for a long time. He said they were able to find a third party that's able to give them support on a 
best-effort basis. He said they've finished the core network infrastructure upgrades when they 
replaced the router and the firewall at the courthouse. He said they are ready to move forward with 
confidence. He said the existing phone service is around $4,650.00 a month, which includes some 
equipment rental that's been dropping off as they scrutinize the bill with Century Link. He said the 
new phone system quote is $2,400.00 so, they're saving about $2,200.00 a month. He said the new 
system is a 36-month term and one month is free so, it's a 37-month term. He said they are asking 
for approval to move forward with this. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve, Mr. Hilton 
seconded and the motion carried. 

Mr. Bontreger asked if they had ever got set up with Nitco as the backup provider because of the 
primary service getting cut. Mr. George said they had received the contract. Mr. Bontreger said he 
got the contract but, the name was wrong so, they were supposed to get it corrected but, he didn't 
know if it ever got sent back to him to sign. Mr. George said he would follow up with them and 
have them resend it. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE25 

AMENDMENT TO CREDIT CARD PURCHASES ORDINANCE: Attorney Beaver said it was 
brought up a couple of meetings ago about having a credit card system in place and it turns out 
that the county put one in place in 2019, which followed the recommendations of the State Board 
of Accounts and their best practices. He said the new idea is to add EMA to allow for a credit card 
to be available for emergency purchases. He said they would use it when people are displaced in 
an emergency and there's no time for Red Cross aid or any other resource so, when people have 
no shelter, food, clothes, etc. they can help them short-term. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve 
the credit card ordinance amendment, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. Ordinance 
No. 04-07-2025B 

Mr. Bontreger asked Auditor Boersma how the process was going with the credit card. Auditor 
Boersma said so far so good and they've made a few purchases. She said she hasn't given Ms. 
Wilson (Emergency Management Director) the card yet because, she was waiting for this 
ordinance to pass so, she will now. She said she was concerned with the ordinance stating that 
every department head has a credit card but, they don't. Attorney Beaver said the intention in the 
original ordinance was that the Auditor would have custody of the card but, department heads 
would have access to it. He said this also includes the gas purchases and meals when traveling so, 
that was in mind when the ordinance was drafted. 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS CLUB/ MICHELLE LAGESTEE / MASTER TRAILS PLAN: Ms. 
Sara DeYoung, with Jasper County Economic Development (JCEDO), said she wanted to 
introduce Ms. Michelle Lagestee from the Jasper County Trails Club. She said she has been 
working with the Trails Club and thirteen years ago JCEDO worked with an engineering firm to 
develop a trails plan for Jasper County. She said since coming into her position, she's tried to help 
their organization, which wasn't present thirteen years ago and she's happy to have so many 
community members and volunteers working on this strategy. Ms. Lagestee said the JC Trails 
Club has been in existence since 2022. She said they received a grant from the Jasper Newton 
Foundation for getting a trails plan update and it was finalized last year. She said their next step 
would be to adopt an addendum into the County Comprehensive Plan so they can apply for the 
biennial Indiana Trails Program. She said this grant is available this fall. 

Mr. Bontreger asked Attorney Beaver what their process would be to incorporate the trails plan 
into the county's comprehensive plan. Attorney Beaver said there's a process to amend the 
comprehensive plan and it essentially follows the plan ordinance, which he thought the 
Commissioners can start through the Plan Commission. He said he thought it was similar to the 
process to change a zoning map for a property and perhaps the Plan Commission would hold a 
hearing on it. He said the Commissioners could approve a proposal that can be sent on to the Plan 
Commission for them to hold a public hearing. Mr. Bontreger asked Ms. Scheurich, who joined 
via Zoom, if this sounded appropriate to her. Ms. Scheurich said absolutely. Mr. Hilton made a 
motion to approve sending this as a recommendation, from the Commissioners, to have the Trails 
Club present to the Plan Commission their request to amend the County's Comprehensive Plan to 
add their trails, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

Ms. Lagestee thanked the Commissioners and said she also wanted to thank the City of Rensselaer 
and the Mayor for their great work. She said they make it easy having a municipality that sees their 
vision for all of their pedestrian cyclists. Mr. Bontreger said it was definitely a part of the quality 
oflife that they want to make sure Jasper County gets. He thanked Ms. Lagestee for her initiative 
and all their volunteers for helping. Ms. Lagestee added that they will be reviving the Jasper Jaunt 
bike ride on Saturday, June 14th if anyone was interested. She said it will start at the Connection 
Center in DeMotte and then go to Fair Oaks Farms. She said their next Trails Club meeting is 
Tuesday, April 22 at 7:00 P.M. at the DeMotte Library. She also said a landowner is wanting to 
donate twenty feet of their land, along a ditch bank but, she wasn't sure what the next steps would 
be to get the drainage easement. She said they wanted to bring this up in case they needed them 
and a Surveyor to see ifit would be too close to the ditch. Mr. Bontreger asked Mr. Urbano if this 
was something that needed coordinated with his office or the Drainage Board. Mr. Urbano said if 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE26 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS CLUB I MICHELLE LAGESTEE I MASTER TRAILS PLAN 
CONTINUED: it has anything to do with a regulated drain or something along those lines. Mr. 
Hilton said it would run adjacent to that. Mr. Urbano said this would have to be reviewed and 
discussed then, they can grant variances if there's anything inside the 75-foot right of way. Mr. 
Bontreger told Ms. Lagastee to contact Mr. Urbano's office and possibly meet them at the site to 
get a visual and then get on the Drainage Board agenda. 

KIRPC I LEE LEWELLEN I AG STRATEGY: Ms. De Young said that Mr. Lee Lewellen was 
present to discuss the ag strategy, which is Jasper, Newton, Benton, White, Starke, Pulaski, Warren 
and Carroll Counties. She said they are looking at economic development as it relates to 
agriculture. She said they received a grant to go through this process and she would let Mr. 
Lewellen go into more detail. Mr. Lewellen said they are trying to bring more money into Jasper 
County and its neighbors. He said he spent ten years as the CEO of the Indiana Economic 
Development Association and his colleague, Ms. Connie Neininger, during that time was with the 
Indiana State Department of Agriculture. He said they developed a process to try to leverage the 
agricultural assets in a region and in a county for economic development. He said they discovered 
at a certain point that most of the rural counties in Indiana hadn't been seeing any economic 
development projects because, those projects generally tend to go towards the metro areas. He said 
they developed a process for identifying the agricultural assets and figuring out how to leverage 
that to attract economic development. He said Ms. Neininger spent a couple of years working in 
five regions, with thirty-eight counties to develop strategies for leveraging those agricultural assets 
and of those five regions, this is the only region that's actively working to implement those 
strategies. 

Mr. Lewellen went on to talk about the four strategies that were developed and where they are in 
terms of implementing those today. He said the first one is a strategy to support regional food 
systems. He said this is looking at local food producers for local consumption. He said they're in 
the process of interviewing those producers and working with the farmer's markets and other 
distribution systems to identify ways to help the local producers get their food into local 
consumers, schools and other institutions to help them better market and expand. 

Mr. Lewellen said the second strategy is food supply chain. He said during the interviews they 
found out that a majority of producers throughout the State ship their product elsewhere for 
processing. He said this means that the value add happens somewhere else and they want to bring 
that back here in the form of processing. He said one of the challenges in Indiana is that we don't 
have the capacity for meat processing. He said they are working with two meat processors, one 
being a startup and another being located in Southern Indiana that they're trying to get to expand 
into this region. He said there's also a lack of cold storage that's also affecting their ability to 
generate profit from things being grown here so, they're trying to address that. He said they're also 
looking at co-packing facilities. 

Mr. Lewellen said the third strategy is the ag workforce. He said Saint Joe College has a CDL 
training process and they're hearing that there's a shortage in trucking and CDL drivers. He said 
they are working with Saint Joe to see if they can expand their program to try to work through the 
Regional Planning Council to get grants to underwrite the training. He said they're also working 
with Vincennes University, who has a CDL training program, to bring them into the region. He 
said Vincennes has an arrangement with John Deere, where they do all of the training for John 
Deere machinery to bring that training into the region. He said along with this, they're looking at 
creating a farm labor database. He said there's no place for farmers or producers to find a 
maintenance worker if they need to find help so, they are developing this database that will help 
them. He said the workers would be able to post their availability and the producers can leverage 
them and bring them on board. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE27 

KIRPC I LEE LEWELLEN/ AG STRATEGY CONTINUED: Mr. Lewellen said the fourth 
strategy was regulatory streamlining. He said many people don't know that Indiana has a right to 
farm statute. He said technically, if someone builds a home or buys a home in an area that's zoned 
for agriculture, they technically have given up their right to remonstrate against any agricultural 
development that occurs. He said they're working with realtor associations to be able to put that 
in part of their closing documents so that people know when they're moving into an agricultural 
area that they're giving up their right to file a lawsuit or remonstrate. He said agriculture was there 
first and if it's zoned for agriculture then they have the rights. He also said that when they look at 
economic development projects in the State of Indiana, agricultural projects typically aren't 
eligible for incentives. He said they crossed this threshold for the first time a couple of months ago 
when a dairy farm wanted to move into Rush County and they were able to connect the Indiana 
State Department of Agriculture and the Indiana Economic Development Corporation to that 
project and for the first time, IEDC provided incentives to an agricultural project. He said they 
want to change this paradigm. 

Mr. Lewellen said there's a lot more information in the handout he provided but, he was happy to 
answer any questions or come back at another time. Mr. Hilton said he appreciated what he is 
doing. He said when you look at the ag workforce and the need they have for young ag business 
representatives and young people to get in that sector, these are some great opportunities they have 
to look forward to. He asked if they seek advisement or have conversations with Farm Bureau. Mr. 
Lewellen said they started this process with Farm Bureau at the table so, they've been a part of the 
process but, maybe not quite as engaged right now. He also said that as they talk to site selectors 
that target communities for bringing in new investment, especially those that are involved in the 
food and beverage processing, they tell them that there's nobody else in the country who's doing 
anything like this. He said the State Department of Agriculture is looking at this region as a pilot, 
if they can pull this off and they will replicate it in other regions. 

Mr. Bontreger said he knows Mr. Lewellen works with the County's Economic Development 
Coordinator, Ms. De Young, and asked what their next steps would be to potentially seek out meat 
processing and cold storage for this region, specifically Jasper County. Mr. Lewellen said one 
thing they're trying to do right now is working with Purdue, who has a curriculum for training 
meat cutters and that is one thing they need. He said another thing is that Indiana doesn't have any 
USDA certified meat inspectors. He said this is a huge problem and if someone needs a USDA 
meat inspector, they have to pay for someone to come from Kentucky, Illinois or Ohio. He said 
they're also looking at where to build those facilities and support them. He said right now, Ms. 
Neininger is working with NiSource, who is buying thousands of sheep to graze under the solar 
panels so, they will need meat processing for those sheep. He said they're going to have to look at 
how they can provide incentives to bring in processing, how to get the machinery and how to 
support training for people to bring in more meat processors and butchers. 

BONNIE VEDEN & LOUIS KETCHUM I KANKAKEE TOWNSHIP PARK I REQUEST TO 
ADD BATHROOM: Ms. Bonnie Veden and Mr. Louis Ketchum, from the Kankakee Township 
Park were present. He said they were there because, they want to add some restrooms to the park 
in Kankakee Township and possibly get some of the economic development money that came from 
the solar project. He said the park is very well used and they also want to add other amenities to 
it. He said the number one thing people want to see there is restrooms. He said last year they went 
to an architect to draw up some plans that was around $500,000.00 for the building itself. He said 
they regrouped and reached out to some contractors and said it would be a lot cheaper and 
reasonable to go with a precast construction bathroom system. He said they came up with 
Honeycutt and for the precast restroom it would be $199,225.00 but, that doesn't include the septic 
system. He said he is waiting to get soil samples done because, they will have to have a septic 
designed. He said they don't know what that cost is going to be but, when they did the firehouse 
in 2019, they put in a system that was $40,000.00. He said they will probably have about the same 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE28 

BONNIE VEDEN & LOUIS KETCHUM I KANKAKEE TOWNSHIP PARK I REQUEST TO 
ADD BATHROOM: thing so, it's going to be a fairly expensive system and they don't know how 
much the electric will cost. 

Mr. Ketchum said they're asking if the county can give them some of the economic development 
money to get their project going. He said they're looking for about $300,000.00 and they feel that 
would do the whole project and they would give back what they didn't use. Mr. Bontreger asked 
if they've done any local fundraisers or if they had any local money set aside. Mr. Ketchum said 
no and they could use some of their township funds but, they don't want to strap too much of that 
if they can keep from it. He said they felt that the solar money was generated in Kankakee 
Township so, they thought they would get a boost in their money coming in to the township but, 
they actually lost money. He said the Assessor explained to them why their assessment didn't go 
up and went down by 79 million dollars so, she told him about the economic development money 
coming in. Mr. Bontreger said it seemed like a worthy cause that they will certainly take under 
consideration and give them an answer by next month. He also asked if they have the staff to take 
care of the facility once they have it. Mr. Ketchum said they have a full-time gentleman that mows 
and takes care of everything so, they will always have somebody out there doing it. He said they 
will also have to get with the Trails people about hooking a trail from Dunn's Bridge to the park. 
He said part of the reason why they put in the park was to get people off the roads and give them 
some place to walk. Mr. Bontreger asked what their timeline would be once they got their funding 
in place. Mr. Ketchum said they'd like to have it up and going this year. 

EMA DIRECTOR KAREN WILSON/ RADIO GRANT: Emergency Management Director, Ms. 
Karen Wilson, said she will need to go to the Council with regard to the reimbursable grant for 
radios, which was $150,000.00 they were awarded. She said she will have to get the money 
appropriated so she can pay for the radios then, she has to send proof of payment to the State for 
the reimbursement. She said this was previously paid out of County General. She said she was 
asking for their blessing so she can go to the Council to appropriate the money to order the radios. 
Mr. Bontreger asked where the radios would be distributed to. Ms. Wilson said they are going to 
get thirty-one radios, mobiles and portables to give to every police, fire and EMS in the county. 
She said it will take about six months to get the radios. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the 
purchase of the radios to be reimbursed in County General, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion 
carried. 

MOOLENAAR SUPREME/ QUOTE TO SEED COURTHOUSE LAWN: Mr. Bontreger said 
they had a quote from Moolenaar Supreme to seed the courthouse lawn. The total cost was 
$600.00. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the quote from Moolenaar Supreme for $600.00, 
Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

CINTAS RENTAL SERVICE AGREEMENT: There was a standard Cintas Rental Service 
agreement. Mr. Standish asked Mr. Cain if they were still having trouble with them at the Highway 
garage. Mr. Cain said they've been in contact with them and they're working on it. Mr. Bontreger 
said its an annual agreement so they could approve it for this year and if they need to consider a 
different vendor then they can. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the Cintas Rental Service 
Agreement, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. 

TOWN & COUNTRY QUOTE FOR FASE CENTER FIRE EXIT: Mr. Hilton said they are going 
to put an emergency exit walkway on the south side of the building by the front parking lot. He 
said due to fire code regulations they have to have a walkway from the back door of the Fase 
Center to the front and it will be wide enough to get wheelchairs out. He said Town & Country 
provided them with a bid for $3,638.00 to excavate the area 8.5" below the top asphalt, haul spoils 
off site, supply and install 6" of crushed concrete, fine grade stone base and pave with 2.5" of hot 
mix asphalt surface. Mr. Bontreger said this seemed reasonable and will be much less expensive 
than concrete. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the quote from Town & Country for 
$3,638.00, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE29 

RENSSELAER FARMER'S MARKET I REQUEST TO USE COUNTY PARKING LOT: The 
Rensselaer Farmer's Market sent a request to use the county's parking lot on Saturdays from May 
3rd to October 251\ 7:00 A.M. to 11 :30 A.M. and Tuesday evenings July 1st to August 26'\ 4:30 
P.M. to 6:00 P.M. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the Rensselaer Farmer's Market's request 
to use the county's parking lot in 2025, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

AUDITOR BOERSMA I OFFICE CUBICLES: Auditor Boersma said she had an estimate for the 
cost to install and deliver new cubicles and take out the old ones. She said she got a breakdown 
for if they had someone on their end to take out the old equipment but, this would probably take a 
couple of days and they would potentially have to close the office or figure out where to put the 
office to keep it open. She said they don't have very many laptops to be able to move mobile. She 
said this company would come in and do everything over a weekend and be ready to go by 
Monday. Mr. Standish asked if there's something wrong with the ones she has now. Auditor 
Boersma said one of the dividers would fall over easily. Mr. Standish said it wasn't bracketed to 
the floor. Mr. Bontreger asked if they could do something with the current ones and if they've 
looked at them. Mr. Standish said they had looked at them and wondered if they could screw them 
into the floor or use L-brackets to stiffen them up. He said he didn't disagree to at some point 
doing an upgrade but, he would be leery of taking action because of other projects going on and 
what's going on downstate. Mr. Bontreger said he saw the need but, he thought they should 
consider this for a little bit and in the meantime, they can get the custodians up there to take care 
of the wobbly one. Mr. Haberlin asked what the amount for the quote was. Mr. Bontreger said 
$59,818.52. Mr. Bontreger said they would take this under advisement and in the meantime, make 
it a priority to get them fixed. 

Auditor Boersma said State Board of Accounts will be having a one-day online conference, as well 
as one day locally, which will be in South Bend. Mr. Standish asked if she would be signing them 
up for the AIC conference. Auditor Boersma said her plan was to do this by Wednesday. Mr. 
Standish asked how many people were planning on going to the budget meeting. Auditor Boersma 
said so far it would be her and Recorder Grow. 

JAKE DAMMARELL / BF&S AGREEMENT/ CARPENTER WINDFARM CULVERT & 
DRAIN TILE REPLACEMENT: Mr. Dammarell, with BF&S, said there's been a lot of back and 
forth with EDP and the road use agreement and various other things that have been needed in order 
to conduct the necessary work for the wind farm installations. He said it has been talked about in 
the past regarding the services necessary to design and then bid and construct the critical culverts 
on their haul routes, as well as inspection thereof. He said before the Commissioners was an 
agreement and he would give the headlines of the services. He said this would involve the 
topographic survey, utility coordination, preliminary design, final design, any environmental 
permitting necessary, completion of contract documents, project management, bid assistance, 
assistance during construction by a licensed engineer and construction inspection for 
approximately 100 culverts. He said this Carpenter Wind Farm project is anticipated to take 
somewhere around two years from start to completion. Mr. Standish wanted clarification that this 
agreement is between BF&S and Jasper County and not the wind farm. Mr. Dammarell said that 
was correct; the agreement is between BF&S and Jasper County and will be reimbursed by the 
wind company through the funds that were previously received. He said BF&S is the county's 
representative and Jasper County is the owner in this agreement. 

Mr. Standish asked the Surveyor, Mr. Urbano, if this is what they were talking about with the 
regulated drains underneath the road altogether. Mr. Urbano said yes and they need to sit down 
and discuss it because, some of the funds that were sent to Mr. Cain for the culverts are regulated 
drain money. He said he wasn't sure where the monument money went or if it has been 
appropriated to them but, there was a check for about sixty monuments that they're going to 
replace. Mr. Standish said he wanted to make sure there's enough money to cover everything. Mr. 
Bontreger said they might need to figure out the accounting between Mr. Cain and Mr. Urbano 
but, this was all funded by the developer. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE30 

JAKE DAMMARELL / BF&S AGREEMENT/ CARPENTER WJNDFARM CULVERT & 
DRAIN TILE REPLACEMENT CONTINUED: Mr. Bontreger said he read the electronic version 
of the BF&S agreement, which gives a breakdown of the fee schedule, as Mr. Dammarell 
described. He said the total was $613,240.00 for the preliminary design, final design, 
environmental permitting, contract documents, project management and bidding assistance. The 
total for the topographic survey, utility coordination, engineering assistance and construction 
inspection was $473,800.00. He said they also broke down the different personnel rates to make 
sure they aren't paying more than they need for an expert. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve 
the agreement with BF &S, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

JASPER COUNTY TOURISM COMMISSION BOARD APPOINTMENT: The Jasper County 
Tourism Commission had a board member resign so, they recommended Ms. Suzi Howard. Mr. 
Standish made a motion to appoint Ms. Suzi Howard to the Tourism Commission, Mr. Hilton 
seconded and the motion carried. 

RENSSELAER COMMUNITY CENTER / OUTER WALL CATCHING WATER: Mr. 
Bontreger said that they looked at the south outside wall at the Rensselaer Community Center and 
they noticed there's a lift catching water. He said they need to look at a solution so water can't 
catch there anymore. He said due to this, they've had to redo the interior wall in the Head Start 
daycare several times. Mr. Bontreger asked Mr. Haberlin to take a look at it. 

MAINTENANCE BUILDING QUOTES: Mr. Bontreger said they had a couple of bids for the 
interior package at the maintenance building. Mr. Standish said that doesn't reflect the overhead 
door being increased by 2"6'. He said the bids were from FBI for the materials and Schuh 
Construction for the labor. He said the man door and window went in, which Auditor Boersma 
paid to FBI with the county credit card. He said the quote from Schuh was $500.00 for labor to do 
the door and put all the trim back up. He also said the concrete was poured last week. Mr. Standish 
said the Schuh bid for the interior walls was $14,965.76 and the other one was $32,985.00 from 
Steve's Specialized Services, with a deduction of$1,500.00 for a different style of door. Mr. Hilton 
made a motion to approve the bid from Schuh Construction for $14,965.76 for the interior package 
at the maintenance building, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

COURTHOUSE BASEMENT: Mr. Standish said they experienced some water in the basement 
again and it has been an ongoing issue to try to keep it dried up .. He said they would like to go 
through it again to see if they can make a permanent fix with the bentonite clay injection. He and 
Mr. Bontreger said they should have, at floor level, perimeter tile and stone to eliminate the water 
issue. Mr. Bontreger said they also need to add to the next agenda roof bids for the Health 
Department, Remington EMS building and the Surveyor/Extension building. 

BURIED CABLES: Mr. Haberlin said he had a simple road right of way permit from Mr. Mark 
Huber. He said they need to bore underneath 900 in Kniman. He said he didn't see any problems 
with this. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the permit, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion 
carried. 

COURTHOUSE BASEMENT CONTINUED: Mr. Haberlin said he had a quote from T.R. Hodges 
for the courthouse basement to put in the bentonite clay externally around the building for 
$37,016.00. He said he thought this was a fantastic investment. He said what they are seeing is so 
much sheet rain hitting the walls and seeping in the ground. He said the bentonite clay will help 
this and they will have to maintain caulking it. He said it seems like there's an excess of water on 
the northeast comer so, he would like to get a camera to take a look to see if there was possibly a 
construction error or if a connection slipped loose. Mr. Standish said he went down there and 
underneath the Assessor's office was three quarters of an inch of water out six to eight feet. He 
said the southwest comer wasn't puddled but, it did have some moisture. Mr. Bontreger said to 
add this to next month's agenda and decide on it then. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE31 

ED CAIN / ROAD CROSSING PERMIT: Mr. Standish said that they had a road crossing permit 
to dig underneath for the dewatering at the Nipsco peaker unit. Mr. Cain said this was for them to 
bring all the material over for the new peaker unit. He said the pipe doesn't have to stay there and 
they can take it out if they want. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the permit, Mr. Standish 
seconded and the motion carried. 

NIPSCO: Mr. Standish asked Attorney Beaver if there was any further development on the road 
use agreement with Nipsco. Attorney Beaver said he had a lengthy conversation with an attorney 
from Nipsco to address the county's proposal after he had reached out to senior management, who 
had signed the agreement with Zelestra to do the project back in 2024. He said that's what's been 
approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. He said he is waiting to hear back from 
this attorney. He said he did talk to the project manager for the peaker unit and he had no idea what 
the project was with the switchyard. He said right now they're in a zone of uncertainty not knowing 
where Nipsco is with it. 

COUNTY BENEFITS FOR COUNTY ATTORNEY BEA VER: Mr. Bontreger said they need to 
officially decide on allowing Attorney Beaver to be in the class to be eligible for county insurance. 
He said he will be sure to go to the Council meeting to let them know what the threshold amount 
is so they can put it in the salary ordinance. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve, Mr. Hilton 
seconded and the motion carried. Attorney Beaver said he wanted to report that he attended the 
last Council meeting and it was complicating to explain the nuances. He said they had a lot of good 
questions about a 1099 versus a W-4. He said you have to be a W-4 employee to participate in the 
county health insurance. He said he has a mechanism in place to account for the thirty hours a 
week of service to the county where there can be a safe harbor to equate roughly billed hours as a 
fraction of the service hours. Mr. Bontreger said the Council needed a baseline amount to put in 
the salary ordinance and they can't put an open-ended amount for the other billing in the salary 
ordinance. He said they would have the baseline amount and he would bill his others as he has 
been doing. Attorney Beaver said that their insurance broker, Mr. Don Carless, said that as long 
as he makes more than minimum wage as an employee they're fine. He said Ms. Eldridge 
mentioned the Fair Labor Standards Act and the requirement of a minimum salary for a 
professional, which brings the salary up from the stiped to roughly $36,000.00. He also said that 
attorneys are exempt from overtime. He said his preference is to minimize any amount of payroll 
liability that would be incurred by the county because, that disrupts his own retirement 
contributions and things like that. He said the compensation, which is based on the total number 
of hours bills, far exceeds any flat or standard fee. He said he is going to make sure there's not a 
problem with a combination of a W-4 and 1099 compensation scheme. Mr. Bontreger said to let 
him know the conclusion so he can explain it to the Council. 

FASE CENTER / SIDEWALK SNOW REMOVAL: Mr. Bontreger said they had a letter from . 
Mr. Dennis Seegers, who donated his time to remove snow at the Fase Center but, he said he will 
not be able to do it going forward. He said they will need to work with Ms. Colee to have somebody 
remove snow for them this coming season. 

NIPSCO EASEMENT: Attorney Beaver said that Nipsco is running power lines up 231 and they 
were wanting an easement. He said the Commissioners approved it, in principle, but it's owned by 
the Building Corporation. He said he's coordinated with them to have them execute the documents. 
He said Nipsco also wanted to have a .002-acre easement on the parcel to the north of the jail, 
which the Commissioners own. He said he would ask the Commissioners for an oral resolution to 
approve the concept of a $1,500.00 payment from Nipsco for a .002-acre easement on the parcel 
immediately north of the jail on 231. He said they are agreeing to cover his fees on the projects so, 
it will be at no cost to the county. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve an oral resolution for 
Attorney Beaver to conclude this negotiation for the .002-acre easement, Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

APRIL 07,2025 

PAGE32 

ED CAIN IV A CATION EXTENSION REQUEST: Mr. Cain said he had an employee that wanted 
to extend their vacation time from the end of June to July. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve 
the vacation extension request, Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

TOWN & COUNTRY I PAVING BIDS: Mr. Cain said that Town & Country was willing to keep 
their unit bid price from last year. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve, Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

JACK HABERLIN I COMMITMENT LETTER FOR GRANTS: Mr. Haberlin said they were 
awarded their grant for intersection paintings and one for signage and they need a letter of 
commitment. He said it is a DocuSign so, Mr. Bontreger can sign it as the Commissioner President. 
Mr. Standish made a motion to allow Mr. Bontreger to sign the commitment letter and any other 
documents on behalf of the Commissioners, Mr. Hilton seconded and the motion carried. 

JAKE DAMMARELL / BF&S / LPA AGREEMENTS: Mr. Dammarell said that they've signed 
INDOT LP A agreements for the State Road 10 intersection striping and the countywide sign 
replacement inventory. He said they do have letters to fill out to hold the funds, which is the 
obligation of funds through the State. He also said he had an update on the SS4A. He said there's 
a new call for projects out this year, which leads them to believe that the program is moving 
forward. He said they've reached out to the Federal Highway to find out what the next steps are. 

JIM MARTIN/ SOIL & WATER: Mr. Martin said they wanted to talk about Senate Bill 211 that 
was signed last week by the Governor. He said what that does is make Clean Water of Indiana 
grant money available for the application and mitigation of invasive species in the county. Mr. 
Bontreger asked if this was to resurrect the Weed Board. Mr. Martin said that was Ms. Lana 
Zimmer's plan. He said they need to work together to see what they want to do and at the very 
least, they would like to have support in applying for grants from Clean Water Indiana, which is a 
three-year matching grant. He said they would like to get the Weed Board back in operation. He 
said there's several invasives that they're targeting. He said the hemlock around the highways is a 
big one and there's phragmite growing in the drainage ditches. He said that Soil & Water can 
address private property problems and the county can address the public property. He said they 
would like to come to the meeting next month and make a formal proposal. Mr. Urbano added that 
the poison hemlock is out of control and said it would be easier to pinpoint where its not. 

PUBLIC CQMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

There being no further business, Mr. Hilton made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Mr. Standish 

seconded and the motion carried. 

ATTEST: (E:t~-------
Rein Bontreger, President 

-~ 
Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County 1J__ 

Rian Hilton, Vice President 


